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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the T'inancial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, its profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

\KB( our opinion.
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)
Management’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and cstimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

By

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (continued)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

e)

(B)

©

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2019
on its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 24 to the financial
statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 201 6 to 30 December 2016
have not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the
financial year ended 31 March 2019.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not
in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be
commented upon by us.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registratiop

(i

Vikash Gupta

Partner

umber: 101248W/W-100022

Membership Number: 064597

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited (‘the Company’) on financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019, we report that:

(i) (@)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and

(c)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

equipment by which its property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year
and no material discrepancies were noted.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
immovable property.

The Company is a service company, primarily rendering Third Party Administration and
related services. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
loans, investments, guarantees, and security to companies, firms or other parties and section
185 and 186 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax dues, Goods and Service tax, Cess and any other statutory dues have
generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of Customs

duty.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax dues, Goods and Service
tax, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears, as at 31 March 2019, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private
Limited (continued)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no disputed amounts payable
in respect of Service tax or Goods and Service Tax. The following dues of Income tax are being
disputed by the Company:

(viii)

(ix)

)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Name of | Nature of the | Amount Amount Period to Forum where
the statue dues (Rs. in paid under which the dispute is
million) protest amount relates Pendi
. ending
(Rs. in
million) (Assessment
year)
Income Tax deducted 55.02 55.02 | 2003-04 to | High Court,
Tax Act, | at source on 2009-10 Karnataka
1961 professional
fees
Income Income tax 25.92 25.92 | 2011-12 Commissioner
Tax Act, | and interest of Income Taxes
1961 thereon (Appeals),
Bangalore

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, bank,
government, or debenture holders during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him under the provisions of Section 192 of the Act.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report of Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private
Limited (continued)

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act 1934,

forBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

e

Vikhsh Gupta
Partner
Membership Number: 064597

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report of even date on the financial statements of Medi
Assist Insurance TPA Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Referred to in paragraph under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date

Opinion

We have audited the internal (iuancial controls with reference to financial statements of Medi Assist
Insurance TPA Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2019, based on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to a “Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to the financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Wy,
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Medi Assist
Insurance TPA Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements.

Mcaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to the Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regislra\l%\]umber: 101248 W/W-100022
\¢ \

Vikash Gupta
Partmer
Membership Number: 064597

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Balance Sheet

(Rs m nullions)

As at As at

Rutars Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 172.97 125.18
Goodwill 5 217.63 175.22
Other intangible assets 6 244.15 254.16
Financial assets 7
Loans receivables 7 (a) 31.93 23.81
Others financial assets 7(b) 0.42 55.32
Other non-current assets 8 502.83 342.78
Total non-current assets 1,169.93 976.47
Current assets
Financial assets 9
Investments 9 (a) 704.17 648.83
Trade receivables 9 (b) 656.50 736.65
Unbilled receivables (31 March 2018: Unbilled revenue) 691.66 648.80
Cash and cash equivalents 9(c) 87.81 63.33
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 9(d) 25,70 6.01
Loans receivables 9 (e) 10.71 20.01
Other financial assets 9(f) 29.27 16.63
Other current assets 10 71.86 106.59
Total current assets 2,277.68 2,246.85
Total Assets 3,447.61 3,223.32
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 11 40.12 40.12
Other equity 12 1,805.45 1,626.13
Total equity 1,845.57 1,666.25
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilitics
Provisions 13 49.06 32.35
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 14 3121 11.09
Total non-current liabilities 80.27 43,44
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 15
Trade payables: 15 (a)
total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - .
total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 226.01 275.11
Other financial liabilities 15 (b) 192.57 270.66
Contract liability 984.23 799.61
Other current liabilities 16 100.50 142.88
Provisions 17 18.46 25.37
Total current liabilities 1,521.77 1,513.63
Total liabilities 1,602.04 1,557.07
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,447.61 3,223.32

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Npmber: 101 248W/W- 100022

Vikash Gupta
Paviner
Membership Number: 064597

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 2% May 2019

Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
CIN: U85199KA1999PTC025676

‘\.\.,WL “e

—

Satish Venkata Naga Gidugu
Director
DIN : 06643677

Dr. Wjlfram Jit Singh Chhatwal
Whole-time Director
DIN: 01606329

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019

@)U»‘* ”\09/

Suchitra Krishnalumur
Company Secretary
Membership Number: A29245

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019




Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Statcment of Profit and Loss

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions except share data and per share data, unless othervise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Ll Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue
Revenue from operations 18 2,796.60 2,601 63
Other income 19 3895 5190
Total income 2.835.55 2,653.53
Expenses
Employee benefits 20 95797 794 86
Other expenses 23 1.433.51 1,362.73
Total expenses 2,391.48 2,157.59
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 444.07 495.94
Finance cosls 21 1 A5 0,65
Depreciation and amortisation 22 8171 64 02
Total expenses 2,474.84 2,222.26
Profit before tax for the year 360.71 431.27
Income tax expense:
Current tax 30 90.08 113.05
Deferred tax charge 29 22.83 16.94
112.91 129.99
Profit after tax for the year 247.80 301.28
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of the profit and loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit (assets)/ liabilities (9.30) (1.62)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss 271 0.56
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (6.59) (1.06)
Total comprehensive income for the year 241.21 300.22
Earnings per share 25
Basic 61.76 75.09
Diluted 60.46 7403

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

for BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Nun r 101 248W/W-100022

(oo

Vikash Gupta
Parmer

Membership Number: 064597

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
CIN: U85199K A 1999PTC025676

Dr. ram Jit Singh Chhatwal
Whaole-time Director
DIN: 01606329

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019

Suchitra Krishnakumar
Company Secretary
Membership Number: A29245

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019

Satish
Director
DIN : 06643677

enkata Naga Gidugu

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29 May 2019
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
(Rs 1 millions)

Particalars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 36071 431,27
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization 8171 64.02
Allowance for expected credit losses - 15.34
Employce stock option compensation cosl 4.11 392
Finance costs 1.65 0.65
Sundry balances written back - (4.74)
Prolit on sale of mutual fund investments (12.35) (19.00)
Interest income (3.81) (13.40)
Net (gain)/ loss on financial asscts measured at fair value through profit and loss (20.37) 022
Dividend received (2.38) (14.64)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 409.27 463.64
Working capital movements:
(Dccrease) / Increase in trade payables (49 10) 73.23
Increuse in other liabilities 58.39 23.68
Increase in provisions 213 2.76
Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables 80 15 (217.28)
(Increase) in other asscts (30.81) (15.85)
Cash generated from operations 470.03 330.18
Income taxcs paid, net (265 18) (130.77)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 204.85 199.41
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital advances (77.78) (102.77)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.07 -
Purchase of current investments (net) (22.62) " (192.63)
Acquisition of business (109 00) -
Maturity proceeds of fixed deposit 32.83 30.18
Dividend received 2.38 14.64
Interest received 122 5.21
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (172.90) (245.37)
Cash Nows from financing activities
Finance costs paid (1.26) (0.65)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (1.26) (0.65)
Net increase/ (decreasce) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 30.69 (46.61)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 49 68 96.29
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 9 (c)) 80.37 49.68
Component of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 80.21 49 37
Cash on hand 016 0.31
Total cash and cash equivalents 80.37 49.68

The above cash {low statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 - "Statement of Cash Flows" notified under scction 133 of Companics Act,
2013 ('the Act’) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and the relevant provisions of the Act

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the cash flow statement.

As per our report of even date atlached

for BSR & Co. LLP Jor and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Company overview
Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited ("the Company®) holds a license from the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA) lo function as a
Third Party Administrator (TPA). The Company has signed up contracts with several gencral insurance companies and government agencics. The Company's income
is primarily derived in the form of TPA fees raised on the insurancc companies expressed as a percentage on the Insurance Premium / fixed price per member / family
paid by the insured to the insurance company. The Company also derives income from pre-policy check-up and card processing carried out for insurance companies
The Company is Deemed Public Company in accordance with section 2 (71) of the Act.

2 Basis of accounting and preparation

I Statement of compliance:
These financial slatements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) hereafter referred to as "financial statements” as per the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act

These financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual
reporting date 31 March 2019, These financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company’s Board of Direclors on 29 May 2019

II  Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is also the functional currency of the Company. All amounts have been rounded-off to the
nearest million, unless otherwise indicated

I Basis of measurement
The financial statement have been prepared on 2 historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for the following:

Items Measurcment basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivatives instruments) Fair value

Share based payment transactions Fair value

Defined benefit and other long-term employee benelits obligations Present value of defined benefit obligations

IV Measurement of Profit/ Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
As permitted by the Guidance Note on Division I1 - Ind AS Schedule I1] to the Companics Act 2013, the Company has clected to present earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. In its measurement of EBITDA, the Company includes
other income but does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs and tax expenses.

V  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates,
judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively

Judgement, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

(a) Determination of the cstimated useful lives
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 In cases, where the useful lives are different
from that prescribed in Schedule Il and in case of intangible assets, these are estimated by management taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance

(b) Recognition of deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assels are recognized (o the extent that it is
probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unuscd
tax credits could be utilized

(¢

-

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary
escalation, actuarial rates and life expeclancy. The discount rate is determined by reference to market yiclds at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-cmployment benefit obligations. Duc to complexilies involved in the
valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive 1o changes in these assumptions. All assumptions arc reviewed at each reporting period

(d) Fair valuation of employee share options
The fair valuation of the employce share options is based on the Black-Scholes Model used for valuation of options. Key assumptions made with respect to expected
volatility includes share price, expected dividends and discount rate, under this option pricing model

(e) Impairment testing:
Goodwill, tangible assets, imangible asscts and other assets are tested for impairment at least annually and when event oceur or changes in circumstances indicate
that the recoverable amount of the assel or cash gencrating units to which these pertain is Jess than its carrying value The recoverable amount ol cash generating
units is higher ol value-in-use and fair value less cost (o dispose. The calculation of valuc in use of a cash generating unit involves use ol significant estimates and
assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used lo caleulate projected future cash [lows, risk-adjusted discount rate,

Q future cconomic and market conditions
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Basis of accounting and preparation (continued)

Business combination

In accounting for business combinations, judgment is required in identifying whether an identifiable intangible asset is to be recorded separately from goodwill.
Additionally, estimating the acquisition date fair value of the identifiable assets (including useful life estimates) and liability acquired, and contingent consideration
assumed involves management judgment These measurements are based on information available at the acquisition date and are based on expectations and
assumptions that have been deemed rcasonable by management Changes in thesc judgments, cstimates, and assumptions can materially affect the results of
operations

Other estimates:

The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at
the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Company estimates the probability of
collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and current economic trends. If the
financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required

Measurement of fair values

The Company's accounting policies and disclususcs require the measurement of fair values for, both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management regularly reviews significant unobservable
inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information, such as broket quules o pricing services, is used to measurc fair values, then the management assesses
the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value
hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level [ that are obscrvable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (ie.
derived from prices).

o Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into difterent levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entirc measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Note 27: share-based payment arrangements.

- Note 28: financial instruments.

Significant accounting policies
Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of onc entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial
instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency forward contracls

Financial instruments also covers contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item that can be scttled net in cash or another financial instrument, or by exchanging
financial instruments, as if the contracts were financial instruments, with the exception of contracts that were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of
the receipt or delivery of a nonfinancial item in accordance with the entity’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments,

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

The Company classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™) or fair value through profit and
loss (“FVTPL") on the basis of following:

- the entity’s business mode! for managing the financial assets and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if'and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial
assets

Amortized cost:

A financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specificd dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

A financial asset is classified and measured at FVTOCTI if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give risc on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intcrest on the principal amount
outstanding

On initial recognition of an equily investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect (0 present subsequent changes in the investiment’s fair
value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This clection is made on an investment by investment basis

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial asscts at FVTPL These asscts are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in statlement of profit and loss

Financial assets at amortised cost | These assels are subscquently measured al amortised cost using the cffective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest mcome, loreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised n statement ol profit and
loss. Any gain or loss on derccognition is recopnised in statement al profit and loss

Equily investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently mepsured at fie value. Divy
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
and are not reciissified w statement of profit and loss.
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
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(i)

(iv)

i

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilitics: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilitics are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, oritis a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expensc, are recognised in statement of prolit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognilion is also recognised in
statement of profit and loss

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights 10 receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecopnises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial
liability when its terms arc modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability bascd on the
modified terms is recopnised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with
modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance shect when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to scttle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year arc recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising
on foreign exchange transactions scttled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the cffects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are sepregated

Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit afler tax for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and also the weighted average number of cquity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential
cquity shares are decmed converted as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive carning per share, only potential cquity shares
that are dilutive i.e. which reduces carnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

Revenue recognition

Income from services

Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to
contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018, In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have nol been retrospectively
adjusted. The following is a summary of new and / or revised signilicant accounting policies related to revenue recognition. The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115
was not significant

Revenuc is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services 1o customers in an amount that reflects that consideration we expect to receive in
exchange for those product or scrvices

The Company derives revenue from rendering TPA services which is measured either as a percentage of insurance premium or amount per member/ famity covered
under the policy depending on the terms of the contract entered into with insurance companics and government agencies. Such amounts are recognized as revenuc on
a pro-rata basis during the period of the underlying insurance policy based on the information made available to the Company for its customers. For healthcare and
related services, the performance obligations are satisfied over time, as and when the services are rendered since the customer generally obtains control of the work us
It progresses

Deferred contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining a contract which are recognized as assels and amortized over the term of the Contract. The Company
presents revenues nel of indirect taxes in its stalement ol Profil and loss

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as unbilled reccivables (referred to as unbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract
liabilities (relerred to as uncarned revenucs)

Finance income consists of interest income on [unds invested, dividend income and gains on the disposal of FVTPL financial assets Interest income is recognized as
il accrues in the Statement of profit and loss, using the etfective interest method

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the dale that the Company’s right Lo receive payment is established, it is probable that the
cconomic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings and other financial liabilitics The costs of these are recognized in the Statement of prolit and
loss using the effective interest method
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

f.
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Property, plant and cquipment

Recognition and measurement:

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
The cost of an item of tangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable
cost of bringing the assct to its working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is
located. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price

A fixed asset is eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal of
an item of property, plant and cquipment is recognised in statement of profit and loss

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company
Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight-line method over the useful lives of assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule If of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company estimates the useful lives for property, plant and equipment as follows:

Category of assets Uscful life (in ycars)
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computer equipment’s - end user devices 3 years
Computer equipment’s - servers and network 6 years
Electrical cquipment 10 years
Oftfice equipment 5 years
Air conditioners 10 years

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which asset is ready for use

Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the lease term or the useful lives of the assets whichever is shorter
Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Acquired imtangible ussets

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment

The cstimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects obsolescence, demand, competition, and other
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assct.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated based on the cost of the asset, less its residual value.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated uscful lives of intangible assets from the date that they are
availabie for use. Management believes that period of amortisation is representative of the period over which the Company expects to derive cconomic benefits from
the use of the assets.

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end, Amortisation on additions and disposals during the year is
provided on proportionate basis.

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost,
Expected credit loss is the difference between the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the entity expects Lo receive discounted using effective interest rate.

Loss allowances lor tradc receivables and loans receivables are measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses Lifelime expected credit losses are the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument Lifetime expected credit loss is computed based on a
provision matrix which takes in to the account historical credit loss experience adjusted for forward looking information. For other {inancial assets, expected credit
loss is measured at the amount equal to twelve months expected credit loss unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which
case those are measured at lifetime expected credit loss

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses long-lived assets such as property, plant, equipment and acquired / self” generated intangible asscts for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or group of assets may not be recoverable 1fany such indication exists, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset or group of assets. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal
(FVLCD) and its value-in-use (VIU). The VIU of long-lived assets is calculaled using projected future cash {lows FVLCD ol a cash generating unit is computed
using turnover and carnings multiples If the recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced 10 ils recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the stalement
ol profit and loss. Il al the reporting date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and
the impairment losses previously recognized are reversed such that the asset is recognized at its recoverable amount but not exceeding written down value which
would have been reported if the impairment losses had not been recognized initially

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Js

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a leasc is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception dale. The arrangement is, or
contains a lease if, fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets,
even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement

Leases of assets, where the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at
the lower of the fair value of the lcased assets at inception and the present value of minimum lease payments. Leasc payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to periods during the lease term at a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss

Lecases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless such payments are structured to increase in line with the expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessors expected inflationary cost increases

Employee benefits
Short-term cmployec benefits:

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of recciving employee services are classified as shori-term employee benefits, These benefits include
salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employec benefits expected to be paid in exchange for employee services is
recognized as an expense tor the related service rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any
further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund and employees state insurance to a Government
administered scheme which is a defined contribution plan The Company's contribution is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefil plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined by independent qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognizes
each period of service that give rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present value are based on the market
yields on Government Securities as at the balance sheet dates. The Company classifies the gratuity as current and non-current based on the actuarial valuation report,

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets. Instead net
interest recognised in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognised as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through other
comprehensive income

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability) are
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilisc it in future service periods. The Company records an
obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured by
independent qualified actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Share-based compensation

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employecs is recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in
equily, over the period that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number
of awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is based
on the number of awards that do meet the related service and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements (continued)

k. Taxation

Income tax compriscs current and deferred lax, Income tax expensc 1s recognised in the statement of profit and loss except lo the extent it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or reccivable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the besl estimale of the tax amount expected to be paid or received afler considering the uncertainty, if any, related
to income taxes. It is measured using lax rates (and lax laws) cnacted or substantively enacted by the reporting dates

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities arc offsct only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recogniscd amounts, and it is intended to realize the
assets and seltle the liability on a net basis or simultancously.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach, Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary
differences arising between the lax base of assets and labilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the deferred income tax arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an assct or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at
the time of the transaction

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent it 1s probable that taxable profit will be availuble against whicl the deductible temporary differences and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is revicwed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is seltled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date

Deferred tax asscts and liabilitics are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilitics and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income. In that
case the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income

l. Business combination

In accordance with Ind AS 103, Business combinations, the Company accounts for business combinations after acquisition date using the acquisition method when
control is transferred to the Company. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any contingent consideration and deferred consideration, if any. Any goodwill
that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity as capital reserve if there exists clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as resulting in a bargain purchase; otherwise the gain is recognised directly in equity as
capital reserve. Transaction costs ar¢ expensed as incurred.

m. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents [or the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of three
months or less from the balance sheet date, bul excludes restricted cash balances

n. Provisions (other than for employee benefits) and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of cconomic
benefits will be required 1o seltle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to scttle the present obligation at
the balance sheet date) at a pre-lax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost. When some or all of the cconomic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognized as an assct, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably

Provisions for oncrous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the future obligations under the contract. Provisions for oncrous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that ariscs from past cvents whose cxistence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. The Company docs not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements

o. Recent pronouncement on Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS):

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"), through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companics (Indian Accounting Standards)
Second Amendment Rules, has notified the following new and amendments to Ind ASs which the Company has not applied as they are eftective trom April 1, 2019:

(i) Ind AS 12 Income taxcs (amendments relating to income tax consequences of dividend and uncertainty over income tax treatments):

The amendment relating Lo income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or cvents, The Company doces not expecl any impacl
from this pronouncement

The amendment to Appendix C of Ind AS 12 specifies that the amendment is to be applied to the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused lax
losses. unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainly over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12 It outlines the following: (1) the entity has lo use
judgement, to determine whether each tax treatment should be considered separately or whether some can be considered together The decision should be based on
the approach which provides better predictions ol the resolution of the ung 1:&41[;,}1 mnlm' is to assumc that the taxation authority will have [l Knowled
relevant information while examining any amount (3) entity has 1o ¢ 'a{?,lhﬂ)[@i&r v of the relevant taxation authority accepting the das freatient idul
determination of taxable profit (tax loss). tax bases. unused tax lossgApdsed tax credi <4y tax rates would depend upon the probability .

\l expeet any impact of the amendment on its financial statements =

¥




Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(i) Ind AS 116 "Leases':

The Company is required to adopt Ind AS 116, Leases from 1 April 2019 Ind AS 116 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessces. A
lessec recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right Lo use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments, There
are recognition exemplions for short-term lcases and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard - i.e. lessors continue to
classily leascs as finance or operating leases. It replaces existing leases guidance, Ind AS 17, Leases

As per MCA notification dated 30 March 2019, Ind AS 116, Leases will come into force w.c.f financial periods commencing on or after 1 April 2019

Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors requires a company to make certain disclosurcs for a new slandard which has been
issued but has not yet come into effect. As per Ind AS 8, the financial statements for the period ending 31 March 2019 will need to include appropriate disclosures
relating 1o possible impact of Ind AS 116

The Company will adopt Ind AS 116, effective financial period beginning 1 April 2019.

The Company will apply this Standard to its leases, retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard, recognised at the date of initial
application. Accordingly the Company will not restate the comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard will be
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained carnings as on 1 April 2019. On that date, the Company will recognise a lease liability measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The right-of-use asset is
recognised at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of uny prepuid on ucciued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet immediately before the date of transition to Ind AS 116.

On transition, the Company will be using the practical expedient provided by the Standard and therefore, will not reassess whether a contract, is or contains a lease, at
the date of initial application.

Company as u lessee

With effect from | April 2019, the Company will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating lease of premises. The nature of expenses related to the lease
will change from lease rent in previous periods to:

a) depreciation charge for the right-to-use asset, and

b) interest expense on lease liability

Previously, the Company recognised operating lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, and recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent
that there was a timing difference between the actual lease payments and the expense recognised.

(iii) Ind AS 19 — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that if a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement oceurs, it is mandatory that the current service cost and the net interest for the period
afier the re-measurement are determined using the assumptions used for the re-measurement. In addition, amendments have been included to clarify the effect of a
plan amendment, curtailment or settiement on the requirements regarding the asset ceiling The Company does not expect this amendment to have any impact on its
financial statements.

(iv) Ind AS 109 — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the
business model, at fair value through other comprehensive income) even in the case of negative compensation payments The Company does not expect this
\l amendment to have any impact on its financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7  Non-current financial asscts

7 (a) Loans receivables

{Rs in millions)

Particulars L Asiat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Considered good, Unsecured
Security deposits 22.80 16.94
Eamnest Money Deposit 9.13 6.87
31.93 23.81

7 (b) Others financial assets

(Rs in millions)

Particulars e —_
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity * 0.40 52.93
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 0.02 0.89
Other receivables - 1.50
0.42 55.32

*Includes bank deposit of Rs. 0.40 million (31 March 2018: Rs. 35.93 million) placed with bank against which bank guarantee have been issued to insurance
companies.

8 Other non-current assets

(Rs in millions)

N As at As at
SRR 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Advance tax and tax deducted at source, net of provisions 497.11 320.61
Prepaid expenses 5.56 2.83
Capital advances 0.16 19.34

\J 502.83 342,78

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

9

9 (a)

9 (b)

Current financial assets

Investments
(Rs in millions)
Particul As at As at
articutars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Investments in mutual funds - Unquoted- (Fair Value through profit and loss)
Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail plan 232.81 101.54
[58,243 units (31 March 2018: 27,666 units)]
Reliance Regular Saving Fund Debt Plan - Growth 195.17 142.22
[7,571,035 units (31 March 2018: 5,874,836 units)]
Reliance Liquid Fund - Daily Dividend Option Dividend Reinvestment (LFIDR) 85.24
[55,737.15 units (31 March 2018: Nil units]
Kotak Medium Term Fund - Growth plan 76.23 82.69
[4,987,767 units (31 March 2018: 5,729,364 units)]
ICICI Corporate Bond Fund - Growth 40.06 107 .72
[1,408,204 units (31 March 2018: 3,983,268 units)]
DHFL Pramerica Credit Opportunities Fund - Regular growth 3291 31.28
[2,271,925 units (31 March 2018: 2,271,925 units)]
Kotak - Credit Risk Fund - Regular Plan Growth 21.60 53.29
[1,061,547 units (31 March 2018: 2,786,218 units)]
LIC Liquid Fund - Direct-Growth Plan 20.15
[5,948.21 units (31 March 2018: Nil units]
UTI Income Opportunities Fund - Growth plan - 47.27
[Nil units (31 March 2018: 2,982,761 units)]
Kotak Low Duration Fund - Weekly dividend - 36.54
[Nil units (31 March 2018: 35,818 units)]
IDFC Banking Debt Fund - Direct Plan - Daily Dividend - 20.21
[Nil units (31 March 2018; 1,999,145 units)]
IDFC Low Duration fund- Daily Dividend 1413
[Nil units (31 March 2018: 1,396,705 units)]
IDFC Super Saver Income Fund - Medium Term Plan - Monthly Dividend 10.50
[Nil units (31 March 2018: 1,005,581 units)]
IDFC Cash Fund - Daily Dividend - Direct Plan 144
[Nil units (31 March 2018: 1,438 units)]
704.17 648.83
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments and market value thereof 704.17 648 83

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Trade receivables
(Rs in millions)
Particulars ot b
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Considered good - Unsecured 656.50 736.65
Credit impaired 40.08 45,05
Total receivables 696.58 781.70
Less: Allowance for expecled credit losses (40.08) (45.05)
656.50 736.65
a) Due date based aging
Debts outstanding for period exceeding six months from the date they becomne receivable 271.19 369.86
Other debts 425,39 411.84
696.58 781.70

._‘!;/“__"'“\\"' 3
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

9(c)

9(d)

9 (e)

9(f)

Financial assets (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

(Rs in millions)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Cash on hand 0.16 0.31
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 80.21 49.37
- In float accounts * 7.44 13.65
87.81 63.33
Balances with banks
- On floal accounts * (7.44) (13.65)
Cash anid cash equivalents 80.37 49.68
* Float balance represents amount received from the Insurance companies towards settlement of health insurance claims.
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above
(Rs in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than 12 months *

25.70

6.01

25.70

6.01

* Includes bank deposit of Rs. 22.53 million (31 March 2018: Rs 1.50 million) placed with bank against which bank guarantee have been issued to

insurance comparnies.

Loans receivables

(Rs in millions)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Considered good - Unsecured

Security deposits 10.71 20.01
Credit impaired
Security deposits 0.08 0.08
Less: Provision for security deposits (0.08) (0.08)
10.71 20.01
Others financial assets
(Rs in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Considered good - Unsecured

Accrued interest income 1.55 0.02
Other receivables 27.72 16.61
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Other receivables 12.23 12,23
Less: Provision for other receivables (12.23) (12.23)
29.27 16.63
Other current assets
(Rs in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Considered good - Unsecured
Balances with government authorities
Advances to suppliers

Advances lo employees

Prepaid expenses

14.45 46,72
4239 47.87
1.54 252
1348 9.48
71.86 106.59
* &Co
P
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial sintements (continued)

(Al aimounts are in Indian Rupees millions excepr share data and per share dara, unless othenise stated)

Il Equity share capital

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Authorised:
6,020,000 (3! March 2018: 4,020,000) cquity shares of Rs 10 cach *

Issued and Subscribed and Paid-up:
4,012,370 (31 March 2018: 4,012,370) equity shares of Rs 10 cach

60.20 40.20
60.20 40.20
40.12 40.12
40.12 40.12

(* Effect of increase in authorised share capital upon merger order of Dedicated Healthcare Services TPA (India) Private Limited ("DHS"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, with the

Company.)

a) Reconcilintion of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 34 March 2018
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 4,012,370 40.12 4,012,370 40.12
Issued during the year = = E -
At the end of the year 4,012,370 40.12 4,012,370 40,12

b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to the shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Voting rights cannot be

exercised in respect of shares on which any call or other sum presently payable has not been paid. Failure to pay any amount called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of shares.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to reccive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

c) Shares held by holding company:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs 10 cach fully paid up held by
i Assi i imi incl 5 equity sha
Mch. A.Sslsl Hfmhhcare Serw.ces Limited (includes 5 equity shares 4012370 40.12 4,012,370 40.12
held jointly with one of the directors) i
4,012,370 40.12 4,012,370 40.12
d) List of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid-up held by
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited (includes 5 cquity shares held jointly with
one of the directors) 4,012,370 40.12 4,012,370 40 12
4,012,370 40.12 4,012,370 40.12
e) Shares reserved for issue under employee stock option schemes:
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Linder employee stock option scheme, 2002: 304 940 equity shares of Rs. 10 epch® 304,940 305 304,940 305

*Refer note 27 for further details of the scheme

f) The Company has not allotied any fully paid up equity share by way ol bonus shares, or in pursuani 1o contract without payment being received in cash nor has bought back any class of equity

shares during the period of five year immediately preceding the balance sheet date

[2 Other cquity

(Hx tn millinnsg)

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2019

As at

31 March 2018

Retained eamings comprise of the Company’s prior years’ undistributed carnings after taxes

Employee stock option outstanding accounl

(2) Employce stock option outstanding account

1,783.88 1.592 85
21.57 3328
1,805.45 1,626.13

The employee stock option outstanding account is used to recognize grant dale fair value of the options issued to the employees under the company's stock option plan, For futher details Refer
p L L I K

\l Note 27 for ESOS scheme details

anGCe rr‘,ﬂ:; o
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

13

14

15
15(a)

15 (b)

17

\]B/ * Refer Note 26

Provisions (non-current)

(Rs in millions)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Provision for employee benefits:

Gratuity * 49.06 32.35
49.06 32.35
* Refer Note 26.
Deferred tax liabilities
(Rs in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Deferred tax assets

Provision for employee benefits (19.66) (22.96)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (15.25) (19.85)
Other items (1.21) (3.03)
Total deferred tax assets (36.12) (45.84)
Deferred tax liabilities
Excess depreciation provided as per income tax law over books 55.95 50.42
Temporary difference arising from fair value adjustment of financial assets and liabilities, net 11.38 6.51
Total deferred tax liabilities 67.33 56.93
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 31.21 11.09
Current financial liabilities
Trade payables

(Rs in millions)
Particulars G !

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Total outstanding dues to micro, small and medium enterprises *

275.11

Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro, small and medium enterprises 226.01
226.01 275.11
* Refer Note 36
Other financial liabilities
(Rs in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Employee benefits payable 18.39 46.99
Insurer's float balance 5.77 14.16
Creditors towards other expenses 3139 73.74
Creditors for capital goods 504 0.72
Other payables 6.47 -
Accrued expenses 125.51 135.05
192.57 270.66
Other current liabilities
(Rs in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Advance received [rom customers

111

Statutory liabilities 99.39 142 88
100.50 142.88
Provisions (current)
(Rs in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Provision for employee benefits:
Employee compensated absences
Gratuity *

284 779
15.62 17.58
18.46 25.37

—



Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

18

(A)

(B)

Revenue from operations

(Rs in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Sale of services :

Third Party Administration (TPA) fees

Card processing income

Add: opening unearned income (includes uneamed income balance of Rs 39.98 million
acquired from as business acquisition)

Less: closing unearned income
Income from sale of services

Other operating revenue:
Income from facilitating pre-policy clieek up seivices

Disaggregate of revenue information

2,865.78 2,289.66
52.98 282.77
839.59 813.97
3,758.35 3,386.40
984.23 799.61
2,774.12 2,586.79
22,48 14 84
2,796.60 2,601.63

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary geographical markets, major products and service lines and timing of
revenue recognition. The table also includes a reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue with the Group’s reportable segments:

(Rs in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Major Product/ Service Lines

Income from services 2,743.62
Income from card processing 52.98
2,796.60
Timing of transfer of goods and services
Services transferred over time 2,721.14
Services transferred point in time 75.46
2,796.60
Contract counterparties
Government customers 529.01
Others 2,267.59
2,796.60
Contract balances
(i) The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contract with customers.
Particul As at
articuiars 31 March 2019
Trade receivables 656.50
Contract liabilities 984.23
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
The contract liabilities primarily relate to advance consideration received from customers for rendering of services.
(ii) Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the period are as follows:
As at

e

Particulars

31 March 2019

Movement in contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year

Increases due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year
Closing as at 31 March 2019

984.23

984.23
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Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future relaled to performance

Particulars Financial year Financial year Financial year Total
2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022
TPA services 921.04 0.09 0.10 921.23
Govt. 63.00 - - 63.00
984.04 0.09 0.10 984.23

The Company applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about its remaining performance obligations if:

« the performance obligation is part of a contract that has an original expected duration of one year or less; or

« the Group has a right to invoice a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with its parformance to date, then if recognises revenue in that amount.

Additional disclosure when Ind AS 115 is not applied retrospectively

Effective from 1 April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" using cumulative catch-up transition method, applied
to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted. The following is a summary of each financial statement line item is affected in current reporting period by the application of this

standard as compared to Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

Financial year 2018-2019

As would have been

EETHICATE As fs‘“;:‘:‘:):" R Effect reported on Ind AS 11
. and Ind AS 18 basis
Revenue 2,601.63 - 2,601.63
Trade receivables 736.65 - 736.65
Unbiiled receivables 648.80 - 648.80
Uneamed revenue - (799.61) 799.61
Contract liabilities 799.61 799.61 -

Other income

(Rs in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit and loss
Profit on sale of investment in mutual funds

Dividend income

Interest on term deposits

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost

Interest on income tax refund

Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Creditors no longer payable written back

Miscellaneous income

2037 -
12.35 19,00
238 14.64
188 4.97
1.09 0,82
0.84 761
0.09

- 4.74
0.04 0.03
38.95 51.90

Employee benefits

(Rs in millions)

Particulars

For the year cnded
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Salaries, bonus and allowances

Contribution to provident and other funds
Employee stock option compensation cost (net)
Staft welfare expenses

849.69 71341
79 44 59.00
411 3.92
2473 18.53
957.97 794.86

Finance costs

(Rs in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Bank guarantee commission 041 0,28
Other interest — 124 037
/ﬁ B Co, 1.65 0.65
5 ¢
@ &
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22 Depreciation and amortisation
(Rs in millions)

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
b 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 44.90 30.35
Amortisation of intangible assets 36.81 33,67

81.71 64.02

23 Other expenses
(R in nuillions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cnrolment card charges 52.68 254,34
Software subscription charges 337.12 276.11
Sub-contracting expenses 253.80 201.05
Business support services 187.02 140.90
Rent 114.04 9732
Postage and communication 85.81 86.75
Repair and maintenance 51.19 4795
Printing and stationery 80.43 64.34
Travelling and conveyance 79.62 61.86
Legal and professional 76.70 33.66
Power and fuel charges 31.41 25.81
Insurance awareness initiatives: 11.62 18.71
Provision for doubtful debts (net) - 15.34
Claims disallowed 35.46 10.63
Security expenses 13.66 9.54
Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 33) 6.71 7.40
Rates and taxes 1.72 313
Housekeeping charges 6.48 2.77
Auditors' remuneration 1.90 1.80
Bad debts written off 293 -
Insurance 1.22 0.82
Net loss on financial assets measured at fair value through - 0.22
Seminar, training and conference expenses 0.30 0.02
Director sitting fees 0.10 0.10
Miscellaneous expenses 1.59 2.16

\I y 1,433.51 1,362.73

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Contingent liabilitics and commitments
(Rs in millions)

Particul As at As at
articulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Contingent liabilitics:

Bonus as per The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 for the period from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 571 571
2015

Demands raised by income-tax authorities for various assessment years with regard to taxation of non-deduction - -

of tax on payments made by the Company to various hospitals towards cashless claims. [Net of amount paid to

Income tax authority under protest of Rs. 55.02 million (31 March 2018: Rs. 55.02 million)] *

Claims against the Company not acknowledged by the Company 0.82 0,03
Employee Provident fund ** - -
Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts, remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for 0.49 572

* The Company has appealed with respect to TDS demand and interest thereon with both Comimissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) and Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal who have upheld the Company's contention that section 194] of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is applicable only on professional fees. The Company has
received partial reliefs from various appellate authorities and as regards interest, the demands raised are not in lerms of the order of the appellate authorities and the
Company has moved to Honorable High court of Karnataka for relief. Pending such hearings, no provision has been recorded as the Company is confident of winning
the matter in the Honorable High Court of Karnataka.

** The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act, 1952. The
Management is of the view that there are interpretative challenges on the application of the judgement retrospectively. Based on the legal advice and in the absence
of reliable measurement of the provision for earlier periods, the Company has made a provision for provident fund contribution pursuant to the judgement only from
the date of Supreme Court Order. The Company will evaluate its position and update its provision, if required, on receiving further clarity on the subject. The
Company does not expect any material impact of the same.

Earnings per share ("EPS")

(All amounts are in Indian Rupees millions except share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
phultoeanli 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders.
Net Profit for the year attributable to the equity share holders (a) 24780 30128
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for basic earning per share (b) 4,012,370 4,012,370
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for diluted earning per share (c) 4,098,627 4,069,918
Basic earning per share of Rs 10/- each [a/b] 6176 75.09
Diluted earning per share of Rs 10/- each [a/c] 60.46 74.03
The computation of equity shares used in calculating basic and diluted carning per share is sct out below:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
’ 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period for calculating basic EPS 4,012,370 4,012,370
Eftect of dilutive potential equity shares
- Employee stock options 86,257 57,548
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period for calculation of diluted EPS 4,098,627 4,069,918

W
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26 Employee benefits
The Company contributes to the following post-employment plans,

a. Defined contribution plan:

The contributions paid/ payable to Provident Fund, Employces State Insurance Scheme, Employees Pension Schemes and other funds, arc determined under the relevant
approved schemes and / or statutes and are recognised as expense in the statement of prolit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service
There arc no further obligations other than the contributions payable to the approved trusts/ appropriate authorities.

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employces salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards employee provident fund and
cmployees state insurance, which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation other than to make the specified contribution. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount recognized as an expense towards contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance for the year
aggregated to Rs. 61.41 million (31 March 2018: Rs. 44.50 million)

b. Defined benefit plans:
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The plan entitles an employee who has rendered atleasl five years of
continuous service to receive 15 days salary for every completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months based on the rate of last drawn salary (basic plus
dearness allowance) by the employee concerned. The company's liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial
gains/(losses) are recognised under ollier comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the details of the employee benefit obligation and the plan assets as at balance shect date:
(Rs in millions)

Particulars o Asat

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Defined benefit obligation 71.65 50.16
Fair value of plan assets (6.97) (0.23)
Net defined benefit obligation (64.68) (49.93)
Current liabilities (15.62) (17.58)
Non-current liabilities (49.06) (32,35)

(i) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit liability and its components

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation
(Rs in millions)

Particulars LOgE G
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 50,16 45.46
Addition on business combination 6.65 -
Current service cost 10.80 9.09
Interest cost 3.43 2.99
Benefits paid by the plan (8.51) 867)
Actuarial gains/ (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income
Changes in demographic assumptions 0.49 (1.84)
Changes in financial assumptions (2.05) 103
Experience adjustment 10.68 210
Balance at the end of the year 71.65 50.16

Reconciliation of present value of plan asscts
(Rs 1 mitlions)

Particulars B al
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.23) (3.69)
Addition on business combination (6.65) -
Contributions paid by the employer (8 49) (5.40)
Benefits paid 851 867
Interest income (0.28) (0.14)
Return on planned assets recogniscd in other comprehensive income
Experience adjustment 0.17 033
Balance at the end of the year (6.97) (0.23)

WYy
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26 Employee benefits (continued)

Expensc recognised in statement of profit and loss

(Rx in mullions)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2019

As at
31 March 2018

Current scrvice cost 10.80 9.09
Interest cost 343 299
Interest income (0.28) (0.14)
13.95 11.94
Expense recognised in other comprehensive income
(Rs i millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Changes in demographic assumptions 0.49 (1.84)
Changes in financial assumptions (2.05) 1.03
Experience adjustment 10.86 2.43
9.30 1.62
. Plan assets
Plan assets comprise the following
(Rs in millions)
Particulars As at s
: 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Managed by - Reliance Nippon Life Insurance and Life Insurance Corporation 6.97 0.23
6.97 0.23
. Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal @ctuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages).
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Discount rate

Expecled return

Future salary growth

Rate of employec turnover

6.60%
6.84%
8,00%
38 00%

6 70% - 6.84%
6.70% - 6.84%
9.90%

40.04%

. Sensitivity analysis

3

(Rs 1n nullions)

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Particulars

A Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (191) 2.01 (1.15) 1.21
Future salary growth (1% movement) 1.97 (1.90) 0.94 (0.91)
Rate of employee turnover (1% movement) (0.37) 0.38 (0.30) 031

The sensilivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of rcasonable changes in key

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period

Expected future cash flows

(Rs in nullions)

As at 31 March 2019

As at 31 March 2018

Particulary

Discounted Undiscounted Discounted Undiscounted
1 following year 3047 3146 1276 1337
2" following year 2169 23 87 675 7.58
3" following vear 1491 1749 423 507
4™ following year 10.25 12.82 253 324
5" following year 710 940 158 216
q Thereafler 18.54 2961 226 357
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27 Employee-based pnyment nrrangement

2012 plan
The Company has introduced Employce Stock Option Scheme 2012 (*ESOS 20127) with effect from 30 April 2012 to enable the employees of the Company 1o participate n the future growih and
success of the Company ESOS 2012 is operated at Lhe discretion ol the Board

The Company has granted lo ils employce 87,842 employce stock options on 30 Apnl 2012, 17.333 employee stock options on 30 Apnl 2013, 28,198 employce stock eptions on | Junc 2014,
6,374 employce slock options on 1 June 2015, 13,500 employee stock options on 15 Seplember 20135, 29,000 employee stock options on 15 July 2016 and 45,394 employee stock options on 1 July
2017 These options which confer a right but not an obligation on the employee to apply for equity shares of the Company once the terms and conditions set forth in the Employee Stock Option
Scheme 2012 (“ESOS 2012”) and the oplion agreement have been met Vesting of options would be subject to continued employment with the Company and mecting the requisite performance
parameters As al the balance sheel date 86,257 options were vested Lo the employees

The Company had below share based payment arrangement under ESOS 2012 as on 31 March 2019
(Amownt in Ry.)

Particulars Date of granis Number of option Excrcise price
granted

Grant | 30-Apr-12 45,400 140
Grant 11 30-Apr-12 40,124 140
Grant 111 30-Apr-12 2318 140
Grant IV 30-Apr-13 17,333 235
Grant V 1-Jun-14 28,198 966
Grant VI 1-Jun-15 6,374 1,244
Grant V11 15-Sep-15 13,500 1,244
Grant VI11 15-Jul-16 29,000 1,368
Grant IX 1-Jul-17 18,110 1,505
Grant X 1-Jul-17 15,405 1,505
Grant X1 1-Jul-17 7.434 1,505
Grant XII 1-Jul-17 4,445 1,505
Conditions
Vesting condition Continued employment with the Company and fulfillment of performance paramelers
Exercise period Exercise on listing / strategic sale
Method of settlement Equily
Vesling schedule

Grant | Grant 11 Gran( 111 Grant 1V, V, V1, VI, Grant X Grant XI Grant X11

VIII and IX

At the end of 1 year 15% 33% 100% 15% 35% 65% 100%
Al the end of 2 year 20% 3% . 20% 30% 35% -
At the end of 3 year 30% 34% . 30% 35% -
At the end of 4 year 35% - 35% -

Modification of Employee Stock Option Scheme

In the month of Augusl 2018, the Company modificd the ESOP vesting period, for all the ESOP grants the modification was towards accelerating the vesting period The fair value of the ESOP on
the date of modification of the equity instrument and that of the original equity instrument estimated on the date of modification is detailed below as pre and post modification value. In accordance
with the modification by accelerating the vesting period the amount of grant date fair value of the options was recognized as an expenses in the stalement of profit and loss immediately The fair
value of the modified options was determined using the same models and principles as deseribed above

Modified Vesting schedule

Grant [ Grant 1] Grant M Grant [V, V, VI, VI, Grant X Grant X1 Grant XII
V11l and IX
Immediate 100% 100% 10024 100% 100%% 10074 100%

Fair value of aptions Pre and Post modification:

Parti Date of grants Fair Value Pre Fair Value Post
articulars

Grant 1 30-Apr-12

Grant 11 30-Apr-i2

Grant I 30-Apr-12

Grant IV 30-Apr-13

Grant V 1-Jun-14 1.512 1,363
Grant VI I-Jun-15 1,295 1,103
Grant VII 15-Sep-15 1,296 1,103
Grant VI 15-Jul-16 1,224 986
Grant IX 1-Jul-17 1,174 858
Grant X 1-Jul-17 1,123 858
Grant XI 1-Jul-17 1,096 858
Grant Xl 1-Jul-17 1,096 858

Fair market value as on the date of modificalion Rs 2,270 per option

Reconciliation of outstanding employee stock options:
For the vear ended 31 March 2018

Particulars Shares arising ont of | Range of exercise Weighted nvernge Weighted avernge

options prices (Rs.) exercise price (Rs.} remnining contractual life
Outstanding as al 1 April 2017 121.814 140 - 1,368 744 415
Add: Options granted during the year 45394 1,505 1,505 328
Less: Options lapsed during Lhe year 9.757 235-1.505 1,371 -
Oplions oulstanding at 31 March 2018 157,451 140 - 1,505 925 328
Exercisable options at 31 March 2018 76.467 140 - 1,505 433 328
For the yeur ended 31 March 2019
Particulars Shares arising out of | Range of exercise Weighted average Weighted avernge

options _prices (Rs.) exercise price (Rs.) remaining contractunl life
Outstanding as at | April 2018 157,451 140 - 1,505 925 328
Add: Options granted durning the year -
Less Options cancelled during the year * 1094 140 - 1,505 1.186 .
Options outstanding at 31 March 2019 80.257 140 - 1,505 709 1 00
Exercisable options at 31 March 2019 86.257 140 - 1,505 709 1 00

cancellation of ESOP grants has been accounted for as repurchase ol an equity miterest 1o the extent that the consideranion does not exceed the fair value of the
cancellanon

Expenses summary of shared-based payment

For detarls on emplovee benefits Refer Note 20 ﬁ/

-
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28 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management
A. Accounting classification and fair values

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities. including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, are presented below,

As at 31 March 2019 (Rs in millions)
Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FYOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Non-current financial assets
Loans receivables - - 31,93 3193 - - - -
Other non-current financial assets - - 0.42 0.42 . . - -

Current financial asscts

Investments 704 17 - - 704.17 704.17 - - 704.17
Trade reccivables - . 656.50 656.50 - - - -
Unbilled revenue - - 691.66 691.66 - - - .
Cash and cash cquivalents E - 87.81 87 81 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents - - 25.70 25.70 - - - -
Loans receivables - - 10,71 n.71 - . - -
Other current financial assets - - 29.27 29.27 - - - -
704.17 - 1,534.00 2,238.17 704.17 - - 704.17

Financial liabilities
Current financial liabilitics

Trade and other payables - - 226.0} 226.01 - - - -
Other financial liabilitics - - 192,57 192.57 - - - -

- - 418.58 418,58 - - - -
As at 31 March 2018 (Rsan millionsi

Carrying amount Fair value
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Non-current financial assets
Loans receivables . - 23.8] 23.81 - - - -
Other non-current financial assets - - 55.32 55.32 B - - -

Current financial asscts

Investments 648.83 - - 648.83 648.83 - - 648.83
Trade receivables - - 736.65 736.65 - - - -
Unbilled revenue - . 648.80 648.80 - . - .
Cash and cash equivalents . - 63.33 63.33 - . - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash
cquivalents - - 6,01 6.01 - - - -
Loans receivables - - 20.01 20.01 - - - -
Other current financial assets - - 16.63 16.63 - - - -

648.83 E 1,570.56 2,219.39 648.83 - - 648.83
Financial liabilities
Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 27511 275.11 - - - -
Other financial liabilitics - - 270.66 270.66 - - - -

- - 545.77 545.77 - - - -

B. Measurement of fair values

The following methods and assumnptions were used fo estimate the fair values:
a) The fair vatues of the units of mutual fund schemes are based on net asset value at the reporting date.

C. Financial risk management

Risk management framework

The Company's managenent has overal! responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework

The Company’s management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of (he risk management framework in relation to the risks
faced by the Company The management is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Market risk;

= Credit nisk: and

= Liguidity risk

i. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as intevest rates and equity prices - will affect the company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of markel risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return, Material investments within the portfolio are

managed on i individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are approved by the appropriate authority
The Company's lixed rate fixed deposit are cartied at amortised cost They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the
future cash tows will Nuctuate because ol a changes in market interest rales

ii. Credit risk —
e . - . . . . . P A T .
Credit risk is the risk ol financial loss to the Compiny il a customer or counterparty 1o a ling w10 meet its contiactual obligntign®, andanfigs Prejpeipally from the
\ . - [ ettt
Company's receivables rom customers LY -\‘(‘/«‘)
The carrying amount of tollowing tinancial asscts represents the maximum credit exposure -\ 5 ' N\
a Trade receivables ) ) | BANGALORE | ¥
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28 Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
C. Financial risk management (continued)
ii. Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivable

The company’s exposure to credit tisk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer and the geography in which it operates. Credit risk is managed through credit
approvals and continuously moniloring the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of business

The company individually monitors the sanctioned credit limits as against the outstanding balances. Accordingly, the company makes specific provisions against such trade receivables

wherever required and monitors the same at periodic intervals,

The company monitors cach loans and advances given and makes any specific provision wherever required
The company establishes an allowance for impainnent that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade reccivables and loans and advances

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables by type of counterparty was as follows

(Ry 1 millions)

As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Trade receivables 696,58 781.70
696.58 781.70

Impairment

The ageing of trade reccivables that were not impaired was as follows,

(Rs in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Neither past due nor impaired 286.50 27425
0-90 days 65.75 97.27
91-180 days 73.14 40.32
181-365 days 14811 163.45
> 365 days 123.08 206.41
696.58 781.70

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade reccivables during the year was as follows:

(Rs in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 45.05 29.70
Impairment loss recognized - 15.35
Amounts written of¥/ utilised 4.97 -
Balance at the end of the year 40.08 45.05

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances

The cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances are held with bank and financial institution counterparties with good credit rating

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset, The company’s approach to managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meel its liabilities when they arc due, under both normal and

stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company’s reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturitics of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted. and include estimated interest payments and

exclude the impact of netting agreements

As at 31 March 2019

(Rs i milhons)

Contractual cash Mows

Particulars Carrying amount 0-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years Movre than Total
S yeurs
Current, non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables- othets 226,01 226,01 - 226 01
Other current financial liabilities 192,57 192.57 - . 192 57
418.58 418.58 - 418.58

As at 31 March 2018

(Ry i millions)

Contractual cash flows

Particulars Carrying amount 0-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than Total
S years
Current, non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables- others 27511 27511 27511
Other curient financial liabilities 270.66 270.66 - - 270 66
545.77 545.77 - - - 545.77

Y-
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

31 Business combination

Summary of acquisition made during financial year 2018-19

On 29 May 2017, Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited ("MAITPL" or "Buyer") and Medicare Insurance TPA Scrvices (India) Private Limited ("Seller")
has entered into a Business Transfer Agreement and accordingly Seller has agreed to sell the identified assets and liabilities relating to Third Party Administrator
Business in accordance with TPA regulations under [nsurance Regulatory and Development Authority of [ndia (1ogether called as "Business") on a slump sale
basis

On 29 June 2018, Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited and Medicare Insurance TPA Services (India) Private Limited has entered into a Closing Agreement
and accordingly the Seller sold the Business to the Buyer for a total consideration of Rs 1[3.15 million. The Company has accounted the busincss combination by
applying the acquisition method.

Acquisition related-cost
The group incurred acquisition related cost of Rs. 3.5 million on consultancy fees. These costs have been included in ‘other expenscs’ in the statement of profit and
loss and in 'operating cash flows' in the statement of cash flows.

Identifiable asscts acquired and liahilities assumedd:
The following table summarises the recognised amount of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:
(Rs in millions)

Particulars Note Amount
Property, plant and equipment 4 330
Cuslomer contracts 6 2.30
Cuslomer relationship 6 20.30
Other intangible asscts 6 0.09
Loans receivables 1.70
Trade receivables 86.13
Cash and cash equivalents 1.71
Other current assets 70.88
Fair value of assets acquired 186.41
Provisions (6.03)
Other financial liabilities (71.85)
Other current liabilities (37.79)
Fair value of liabilities assumed (115.67)
Goodwill on consolidation 5 42.41
Total consideration payable 113.15
Purchase consideration - cash outflow

(Rs in millions)
Particulars Amount
Oultflow of cash o acquire business, net of cash acquired
Cash consideration 113.15
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired (1.71)
Net outflow of cash - investing activitics 111.44

Goodwill of Rs. 48.99 million compriscs the value of expected synergies arising from acquisition and provider network of hospilals, which is not separately
recognised. Goodwill recognised is expecled to be deductible for income tax purpose

The amounts of revenue and EBITDA of the acquiree since the acquisition date included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss lor the reporting period
amounted to Rs 114 70 million and Rs 1 30 respectively: and

The revenue and EBITDA of the combined entity for the current reporling period as though the acquisition date for all business combinations thal occurred during
the vear had been as ol the beginning of the annual reporting period would have been Rs 223 76 million and Rs 30 82 million respectively
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

32 Operating leases
The Company is obligated under non-cancellable operating leases for office premises which is renewable on a periodic basis at the option of both the lesser and
lessee. Total rental expense under non-cancellable operating lease amounts to Rs. 74.36 million (31 March 2018: Rs 51.68 million).
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as {ollows:
(Rs in millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Not later than one year 74.78 64.11
Later than one year but not later than 5 years 149.42 198.84
Later than 5 years - -
Further, the Company is obligated under cancellable operating leases for office space lease rentals Total rental expense under cancellable operating leases during
the year was Rs. 40.58 million (31 March 2019: Rs 45.65 million)
33 Corporate Sacial Responsibility (CSR)
As per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has formulated a CSR policy and has constituted a CSR committee. The area for CSR activities is
livelihood enhancement and employment enhancing vocational skills by way of providing training in a wide array of functional areas to persons at various
locations of the Company across India. During the period Rs. 6.7 million (31 March 2018: Rs. 7 40 million) was spent towards the CSR activities.
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company for the period Rs 6.54 million (31 March 2018: Rs 5.68 million),
b) Amount spent during the year:
For the year cnded 31 March 2019
(Rs in millions)
Particulars Amount paid Not paid Total
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset - - -
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 6.71 - 6.71
6.71 - 6.71
For the year ended 31 March 2018
(Rs in millions)
Particulars Amount paid Not paid Total
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset - . =
(i) On purpose other than (i) above 740 - 7.40
740 - 7.40
34 Scgment reporting
The Company operates in one segment i.e. rendering of TPA services Hence, no disclosures for business segments have been given. Additionally, the Company
operates only in one geography i.e. India and hence no disclosures for secondary segment information has been given.
35 Related party disclosures
In compliance with Ind AS 24 - “Related Party Disclosures”, as notified under Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 the required disclosures are given below:
A. Namcs of the related parties and description of relationship
(i) Holding company Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
(formerly known as Medi Assist Healthcare Services Private Limited)
(i) Subsidiary Dedicated Healthcare Services TPA (India) Private Limited
(Appointed date being | QOctober 2016)
(Merged cffective 24 April 2018)
(iii) Fellow subsidiary companies Medybiz Services Privale Limited
Medi Assist Foundation
(iv) Key Management Personnel Dr. Vikram Jit Singh Chhatwal - Whole time Director

.

Mrs. Srimathi Ranganathan- Whole time Director (till 28" September 2018)




Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

35 Related party disclosures (continued)

B. Summary of transactions with the above related parties are as follows :
(Rs in millions)

Particul: For the year ended For the year ended
articulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Support service fee paid to
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 217.76 16110
Software subscription charges paid to
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 313.54 26774
Reimbursement of expenses to
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited
Health screenings 126.45 8048
Facilities and other expenses 3421 32,10
Share based payment expenses cross charged to
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 11.22 9.23
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel
Short term employee benefits 1191 10.73

C. The Company has the following amount due from/ to related parties
(Rs in millians)

. As at As at
FEEGEEEE 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Amount payable towards rendering of services
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 136.69 316.66
Other receivables
Medi Assist Healthcare Services Limited 27.72 18.00

36 Micro, small and medium enterprise

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in
accordance with the ‘Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to
such enterprises as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the
Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is nol expected to be
material The Company does not have any dues to micro and small enterprises as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
(Rs in millions)
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Particulars

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the

end of each accounting year:
Principal - -
Interest ¥

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made - -

to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the

interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,

2006

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.
The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for
the purpose of disallowance of a deduclible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

\( § (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

37 Events after the reporting date

The Company evaluated all events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date through, the date at which the financial statements were available to be
issued and determined that there are no other items to disclose except those already disclosed in the financial in earlier notes.

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

for BSR & Co. LLP Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Medi Assist Insurance TPA Private Limited

Firm's Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

(ot

Vilkash Gupta Dr. Vikphni Jit Singh Chhatwal Satish Vengiita Naga Gidugu
Partner Whole-time Director Director

Membership Number.: 064597 DIN: 01606329 DIN : 06643677

Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
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Suchitra Krishnakumar
Company Secretary
Membership Number: A29245
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